Minutes of a Meeting of Market Deeping Town Council Held on Wednesday 14th October at 7.30pm Zoom meeting code 847 4082 3046 Password 912382

Present:

Cllr Miss Moran (Chair) Cllr Brookes Cllr Hembrow Cllr Shelton Cllr Broughton Cllr Dolan Cllr Miss Collins Cllr Neilson Cllr Mrs Redshaw Cllr Davis Cllr Mrs Sked

LCC Cllr Trollope-Bellew, a representative of the Neighbourhood Plan and the Clerk were also in attendance.

Cllr Miss Moran welcomed everyone to the meeting. The Neighbourhood Plan representative then advised members of the 'Green Recovery Fund' bid that had been placed naming the council as lead. She advised that the money was available as part of the Lottery Heritage fund and that the applications would be assessed by DEFRA. The theme under which the bid had been submitted was 'Connecting People with Nature', and was concentrated on the Green Walk, as detailed in the Neighbourhood Plan, which would improve access to the walks and pathways surrounding the Deepings. The bid was made in conjunction with the Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust and would fit with social prescribing recommendations. It would hope to install a 'green gym' for all to use, plus the employment of an administrator and a walk co-ordinator. The representative will forward details of a Power Point presentation to the clerk for all members to access with further information. The result of the bid should be known by the end of October. Members thanked the representative for attending and she left the meeting.

7.35pm SKDC Cllr Baxter entered the meeting.

Cllr Mrs Trollope-Bellew then advised members that she had had no prior notice of the cycle rack that had been unexpectedly installed in the Market Place by LCC, and, since requesting its removal, she had received no information regarding when it would be removed and/or re-sited. Cllrs expressed their disappointment that it had been installed when the council was in negotiations about which rack should be purchased and where it should be placed.

7.49pm Cllr Miss Collins re-entered the meeting.

Cllr Baxter then advised members that he too disagreed with the type and location of the cycle rack. He advised of planning applications that he had called in and of the recommendation for the Mill Field site to be preserved as the last open space in Market Deeping, and thanked all involved in the campaign. SKDC 'LeisureSK' had been set up to manage the Deepings, Bourne and Stamford Leisure centre plans and it was possible that the Bourne CiCLE Festival may be able to take place again in future.

Cllr Broughton had nothing to report on behalf of SKDC, and Cllr Miss Moran confirmed that the Protection Order had been granted for the Spinney and adjoining areas regarding dogs being kept on leads.

102. Chairman's Welcome & Introductions

Cllr Miss Moran welcomed members to the meeting.

103. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Cllrs Yarham and Lester.

104. Declarations of Interest under the Localism Act 2011

Cllr Miss Collins declared an interest in agenda item 9, the Deepings Youth Group.

105. Acceptance of minutes of a meeting held on 9th September 2020

Cllr Miss Moran asked for an amendment to be made regarding item 95; the decision of the Full Council to pass the approval of the Alfresco Landscaping contract to the Town Hall and Cemetery committee was legal and not against any regulations. She then asked members if they were to accept the minutes of the meeting including this amendment. It was then proposed by Cllr Shelton, seconded by Cllr Dolan and **RESOLVED** unanimously to accept the notes of the meeting, as amended above, as a true and accurate record. The Chairman will sign the minutes when safe to do so.

106. Reports: Including reports from Deepings First, Committees (Planning and Highways), Mayor's Diary and the Clerk

Deepings First

Cllr Shelton advised that the examiner for the Neighbourhood Plan had visited the Deepings and had been here for two days. If a public hearing is necessary, it will be held next month. In any event, the examiner's report will be passed to SKDC and it is hoped that by December the plan will be available for referendum, although due to Covid restrictions a referendum would not be able to take place until May 2021.

Planning & Highways

Cllr Brookes advised members that the main issues arising from the last meeting would be dealt with under agenda items 8 and 10. He confirmed that the cycle rack installed by LCC was not to the committee's liking and that the committee had been in the process of selecting an alternative when the actual cycle rack was placed.

Amenities and Open Spaces

Cllr Broughton advised members that in respect of item 32, he has asked the contractors to dig out further to provide suitable drainage. Cllrs Mrs Sked and Hembrow confirmed that the contractors had completed 5 areas and that the workmen were hardworking and pleasant to deal with. Cllr Brookes then proposed that the recommendations of the minutes were accepted by the council and this was **RESOLVED** with 10 in favour and one against.

Town Hall and Cemetery

Cllr Miss Moran advised that as the minutes of the last meeting had only recently been published, she would not raise any issues at this meeting.

Mayor's Diary

Cllr Yarham had attended the following events: 10/09/2020 – Reopening of the Deepings Youth Group face to face sessions.

Clerk's Report

The Clerk had issued members with a report prior to the meeting:

- 1. The office overhead light has been replaced as it was not working.
- 2. PAT testing has been carried out in the Town Hall and the Park Keeper's shed.
- 3. The annual telephone and broadband review has taken place and we have been allocated a faster broadband speed of 80/20 for the same cost per month.
- 4. The survey report for the Town Hall has been received.
- A new deputy clerk has been appointed. References have been received and she will start work on 20th October.
- 6. Following last month's Full Council meeting, and queries regarding the land transfer for the allotment and adjoining land, we have not received any response from Anglian Water, and LALC recommended that we seek specialist advice. However, Cllr Shelton has spoken to a planning professional, who is a member of the Neighbourhood planning team, and has obtained further information. He will put a pack together, recommending figures regarding the commuted sum for future maintenance of the areas to be adopted, and will discuss this with Cllr Brookes before the next meeting.
- 7. The Playscapes work is proceeding according to schedule, and the contractors have spoken with ClIr Broughton and ClIr Hembrow, who are monitoring the work, and also ClIr Mrs Sked and the

clerk. There have been concerns regarding drainage, and Cllr Hembrow will meet with the contractors to agree appropriate soakaways.

8. The RBL coordinator has advised that the council will be offered 10 places at the restricted service on Remembrance Sunday. This may include spouses/partners and the clerk has asked for confirmation. The clerk will notify councillors and will collate numbers of those wishing to attend. Cllrs Mrs Redshaw, Mrs Sked, and Miss Collins would like to attend. Cllr Miss Moran confirmed that we will be unable to facilitate a parade on Remembrance Sunday, but that the Opening and Closing of the Remembrance Gardens would proceed with limited numbers attending. Cllr Broughton confirmed that he has passed the fireworks to mark 11am on the 11th November to the park keeper to fire in his absence.

107. Correspondence to be noted and resolved upon

Who from	Subject	Date
Stamford Arts	Newsletter	10/09/2020
SKDC	Parish update	11/09/2020
NALC	Chief exec bulletin	11/09/2020
Healthwatch	Newsletter	11/09/2020
Deepings school	Newsletter	11/09/2020
LALC	AGM	14/09/2020
NALC	Newsletter	14/09/2020
NALC	Newsletter	15/09/2020
Rural services network	Newsletter	15/09/2020
SKDC	Creative Arts newsletter	15/09/2020
Healthwatch	Citizen's panel	18/09/2020
YMCA	Newsletter	18/09/2020
Healthwatch	Newsletter	18/09/2020
NALC	Chief exec bulletin	18/09/2020
Deepings school	Newsletter	18/09/2020
Neighbourhood alert	Phishing emails	21/09/2020
LALC	News & training dates	21/09/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	22/09/2020
UK Parliament	Newsletter	23/09/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	23/09/2020
Schools consultation LCC	Consultation	30/09/2020
Neighbourhood alert	Neighbour of the year	24/09/2020
NALC	Bulletin	25/09/2020
LCC	Parish update	25/09/2020
Deepings school	Newsletter	25/06/2020
Rural services network	Bulletin	29/09/2020
NALC	Newsletter	29/09/2020
Deepings library	Newsletter	30/09/2020
NALC	Newsletter	01/10/2020
Neighbourhood alert	Newsletter	01/10/2020
Healthwatch	Newsletter	02/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	02/10/2020
Deepings school	Newsletter	02/10/2020
NALC	Newsletter	02/10/2020
Public sector exec	Bulletin	04/10/2020
NALC	Newsletter	04/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	05/10/2020
Rural services network	Newsletter	06/10/2020
NALC	Newsletter	06/10/2020
SKDC parish update	Update	06/10/2020

Correspondence to be noted

LALC	Newsletter	06/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	06/10/2020
Rural services network	Newsletter	07/10/2020
LALC	Training event	07/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	07/10/2020
Cllr Stevens, DSJ	Thank you letters, Deepingathon	07/10/2020
Stamford guild	Newsletter	07/10/2020
NALC	Newsletter	08/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	08/10/2020
NALC	Bulletin	09/10/2020
Healthwatch	Newsletter	09/10/2020
Deepings school	Newsletter	09/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	09/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	11/10/2020
NALC	Newsletter	13/10/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	13/10/2020
Neighbourhood alert	Going online	13/10/2020

Who from	Subject	Members' Response
Welland Rivers Trust	Community engagement	Cllr Miss Moran asked that the clerk reported the high level of weed in the ditches and rivers that could be addressed. She will place the information on the council's Facebook page.
B&G Plants	Planting requirements for 2021	It was proposed by Cllr Miss Collins and RESOLVED unanimously to engage B&G plants for the 2021 planting.
Poppy appeal	Wreaths for November	Members RESOLVED unanimously to have 2 wreaths as usual for the Riverside Gardens of Remembrance and for the Church.
Businesses in the Market Place	Joint complaint regarding the cycle rack placed by LCC outside Linfords	This is now in hand. Cllr Trollope- Bellew has spoken to the appropriate LCC officer on the council's behalf with a view to re-siting the cycle rack.
NALC	Request to write to MP to support Local Electricity Bill	Members had previously agreed to monitor how the bill was progressing and ClIr Brookes advised that a second reading was due on 29 th January 2021 so there was still time to act before then.
SKDC	Public speaking notification S20/0311 proposed Rotary funded memorial in Market Place	Cllr Davis commented that he was concerned with the upkeep of the proposed memorial. Cllr Baxter had confirmed that the application would come up for public speaking on 28 th October and Cllr Miss Moran said that she would speak as a ward councillor, and also on behalf of the Town council if members would like her to.

108. Council Finances

a) Income and expenditure by budget cost centre

Members had received a copy of the Council Finances and Omega report prior to the meeting. Cllr Miss Moran asked if there were any questions. There were none.

b) Accounts to be paid

It was proposed by Cllr Shelton and **RESOLVED** unanimously that the council pay its bills. See appendix A. c) **Preparations for Precept Planning 2021/22**

The clerk had issued members with a copy of the Ear Marked Reserves held, in addition to the omega report, and asked that members consider these in conjunction in advance of the next meeting so that recommendations and requests for 2021/22 could be considered by the Full Council at that time.

109.For members to ratify the decision of the Planning and Highways Committee to proceed with the bus shelter tender quotation from Externiture

The clerk had provided members with quotations from both of the companies who had submitted tenders prior to the meeting, and Cllr Hembrow had prepared a report on the tenders submitted. Cllr Miss Collins was concerned that the minutes of the Planning and Highways meeting were not available. Members therefore voted on whether they felt they had enough information to make a decision and it was **RESOLVED** with 7 in favour that there was enough information to hand to decide.

8.52pm Cllr Trollope-Bellew left the meeting.

Cllr Hembrow advised that there were some items missing from the quote provided by Chris Groome and he believed that the Externiture quotation was more thorough and better suited for purpose. It was acknowledged that work to bus shelter number 9 was not required as this shelter was due to be replaced entirely. Cllr Miss Moran then proposed that the decision of the Planning and Highways committee to proceed with the bus shelter tender quotation from Externiture be ratified and it was **RESOLVED** unanimously to proceed with this company.

8.51pm Cllr Neilson left the meeting

110.Grant aid: second payment to Deepings Youth Group

The clerk had provided members with a copy of the accounts sent by the trustees prior to the meeting. Cllr Miss Collins advised members that the running of the Youth Group depends on both Market Deeping Town Council and Deeping St James Parish Councils and that she is a Trustee on behalf of Market Deeping Council. Cllrs Miss Moran and Mrs Sked then asked questions regarding the accounts and Cllr Miss Collins was unable to provide an answer. Cllr Davis therefore suggested leaving the money in Ear Marked Reserves until the accounts were clarified and Cllr Brookes cautioned members that the council should not spend money without having accurate projections of what the money is for. Members discussed the issues for some time and it was then proposed by Cllr Broughton that the balance of the money be paid. There were 3 votes in favour, 3 against and 4 abstentions. Cllr Miss Moran, as chair, then gave a casting vote against the balance of the money being paid at this time.

111.For members to agree a response to the Government White Paper on 'Planning for the Future'

Cllr Brookes had provided some feedback on the paper prior to the meeting. Cllr Shelton then advised that he had read the 84-page paper several times on behalf of the Neighbourhood Plan and had offered to collate responses to each of the 26 questions asked on behalf of the council also. Cllr Miss Moran asked members if they were happy for Cllr Shelton to prepare the responses on behalf of the council and then proposed that he do so. It was **RESOLVED** with 6 in favour and 4 abstentions.

9.19 Members agreed to a short break 9.24he meeting resumed

112. For members to receive an update on Digital Council and to agree how to proceed

The clerk advised members that the transfer of information to the new website is progressing well and that the company hired to do the work was confident it would be completed before the deadline of the end of December. The company will also prepare a guide on how to use the new website. The clerk also advised that the new email domain had been set up and the addresses were ready to use. Cllr Davis offered to produce a guide for members as to how to access and use the new email addresses. Cllr Miss Moran asked members if they were happy for Cllr Davis to do this and they were. The clerk will notify members of the new addresses.

For members to agree a flag flying schedule for all council owned areas

The clerk had provided members with the existing schedule prior to the meeting. Members discussed the fact that 2 committees on occasion had flown different flags to those listed on the schedule and it was acknowledged that there had been some one off events such as the VJ day celebrations this year. Cllr Brookes suggested that the schedule be updated to read that the flags will be flown at both the Riverside Park and the Town Hall, and Cllr Miss Moran asked members to contact the clerk if they wished a flag to be raised on any occasion other than detailed on the schedule.

113.Forthcoming events: For members to consider arrangements for the Opening and Closing of the Remembrance Gardens and the Remembrance Day service/parade

Members acknowledged that under current regulations, the maximum people that should attend the Opening and Closing of the Gardens should be 30 for each occasion. Cllr Broughton proposed that the council stick to this number and it was **RESOLVED** unanimously to do so. The clerk was asked to contact Rev'd George Holding to officiate at both services, and Cllr Mrs Redshaw will provide a list of groups who would expect to be invited.

114. For members to consider and discuss any points raised in the public session.

Members commented on the lack of acknowledgment by SKDC of concerns regarding planning applications. It was generally felt that the council needed more and better input into the planning process. Cllr Brookes advised that SKDC need to clearly set out their planning policies so that the council can refer to supporting them in comments made. Cllr Shelton reminded members of the meeting that had been arranged approximately 2 years ago with members of the planning team at SKDC and volunteered to arrange another such meeting. Deeping St James PC could also be invited, as many planning issues were relevant to both councils. It was agreed that Cllr Shelton should proceed to arrange the meeting.

115.Confidential/Personnel Matters: Consideration to go into Closed session to discuss:

Staff issues

There were none.

Cllr Miss Moran then thanked all members for attending and declared the meeting closed at 9.50pm. The next scheduled meeting of the Full Council will be held on Wednesday 11th November 2020, virtual meeting details will be given when the agenda is published.

Chairman's signature.....

Date.....

Attachments: Appendix A

Description	Amount		
Interest from Public Sector Deposit Fund	£	27.01	
Cemetery Fees	£	1,062.00	
Precept second half	£	114,788.00	
	Total	£	115,877.01

Accounts: To be Paid - October (Full Council) 2020

Staff Related	Ex VAT	VAT	VAT		VAT	Description	Payment Type
Employees		£	-	£	5,421.57	Salaries	BACS
West Yorks PF		£	-	£	1,556.32	Pension Contributions estimate	BACS
HMRC & NI		£	-	£	1,446.43	Tax & NI Contributions estimate	BACS
			Subtotal	£	8,424.32		

Direct Debits	Ex V	AT	VAT		Inc	VAT	Description
Opus Energy	£	83.94	£	0.95	£	84.89	Park Keepers Electricity
Opus Energy					£	64.94	Town Hall Electricity
Opus Energy	£	9.31	£	0.41	£	9.78	Feeder Pillar
Opus Energy	£	19.22	£	0.47	£	19.69	JE Field Box
Everflow					£	7.31	Town Hall Water
Everflow					£	21.40	Cemetery Water
OneCom	£	90.35	£	18.07	£	108.42	Telephone & Broadband (upto 30/06/20)
All Star (Fuel)	£	100.47	£	20.09	£	120.56	Fuel
AllStar (Fuel)	£	36.81	£	7.36	£	44.17	Fuel
AllStar (Fuel)	£	59.83	£	11.96	£	71.79	Fuel
All Star (Fuel)	£	59.83	£	11.96	£	71.79	Fuel
AllStar (Fuel)	£	37.80	£	7.56	£	45.36	Fuel
AMS Vehicle Tracking	£	10.00	£	2.00	£	12.00	Park Keepers Vehicle
MG Skip Hire	£	230.00	£	46.00	£	276.00	Cemetery skip hire
Personel Advice & Solutions	£	100.00	£	20.00	£	120.00	HR Support
Peninsula	£	100.58	£	19.11	£	120.29	H&S Support
				Subtotal	£	1,198.39	

Accounts to be Paid - October (Full Council) 2020 (cont...)

Bacs Transactions	Ex	VAT	VA1	-	Inc	: VAT	Description
вт	£	14.97	£	2.99	£	17.96	line rental
CLH consulting	£	30.00	£	-	£	30.00	internal audit of accounts September
CLH consulting	£	30.00	£	-	£	30.00	internal audit of accounts October
Joshua Yarham	£	400.00			£	400.00	Mayoral advance
Deeping Direct	£	60.00	£	12.00	£	72.00	Hire of self storage unit 4 wks
Woodgrange Service Station	£	45.92	£	2.29	£	48.21	Red Derv
peterborough Grass Machinery17	£	17.20	£	3.44	£	20.64	washer and recoil Rope
Peterborough Grass Machinery	£	162.50	£	32.50	£	195.00	strimmer unit and manuals
PG&CNotingham	£	9.72	£	1.94	£	11.66	Magiflex
Set in Stone Memorials	£	175.00	£	35.00	£	210.00	supply of crem tablets L Salt, J Tindall, C Clifton
Branch Bros	£	2.49	£	0.50	£	2.99	Gripmax Gloves
Branch Bros	£	46.00	£	-	£	46.00	Grass Seed
Branch Bros	£	20.68	£	4.14	£	24.82	Bin Liners and Tree Stump Root Killer
Branch Bros	£	19.49	£	3.90	£	23.39	survey spray paint and timber fixing pegs
Mrs J Blades	£	15.00	£	-	£	15.00	Cleaning of town hall
MG Skip hire	£	230.00	£	46.00	£	276.00	skip hire
Elliot Electrical	£	245.00			£	245.00	replace lights with emergency pack
Elliot Electrical	£	220.00			£	220.00	replace 6 ft lights
Howsafe	£	64.98	£	12.99	£	77.97	3x hi-vis jackets
Pinnacle	£	816.00			£	816.00	Dust Limestone 20 tonnes x £34
ROSPA	£	210.50	£	42.10	£	252.60	Annual inspection
Gowers Surveyors	£	850.00	£	170.00	£	1,020.00	building survey of town hall
Viking	£	33.87	£	6.77	£	40.64	stationery
Environmens SK Ltd	£	533.18	£	106.64	£	639.82	Monthly cut of the Highway veges in Market Deeping August
Lincolnshire assoc of Counils	£	35.00			£	35.00	Local Council Review 2 copies Annual charge 4 issues
GBSG	£	61.00	£	12.20	£	73.20	Maintenance contract for CCTV
Fentons	£	58.07	£	11.61	£		Trimmer line and engine oil
Alfresco landscaping	£	1,979.17	£	395.83	£	2,375.00	Booking fee as per PO 003 2020 dated 6.10.20
Inside Out home store	£	16.22	£	3.24	£	19.46	plants
				Subtotal	£	7,308.04	